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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Ramsarup Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Ramsarup Industries Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter refetred to as “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March, 2024, and its loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICATI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 36 of the financial statements which describes the accounting effect of the Resolution
Plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated 4th September, 2019, which was
subsequently challenged at different forums and achieved finality pursuant to an order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of
India dated 12th May, 2022. These adjustments have non-routine material impact on the financial statements for the FY
ended 31st March 2024. The said adjustments are shown directly in Equity pursuant to the directions provided by
aforementioned Order and relevant Indian Accounting Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Board Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.




Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income) , the statement of changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended). This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other itregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our




opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central  Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordetr, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in Annexure-A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the accompanying Financial Statements.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(g)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under;




€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial
Statements — Refer Note 43 to the Financial Statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(iv) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the notes
to the Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity (ies), including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes
of the Financial Statements no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies)
, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

(v) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no dividend
has been declared or paid during the year by the company as the company is in contravention of the
provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1
April 2023




Based on our examination, which included test checks, except for one instance mentioned below, the
Company has used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software:

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application layer of the
accounting software relating to property, plant and equipment.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year
for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act.

For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 309005E

CA. RITESH AGARWAL

Partner

Membership No. 062410

Dated: The Cf"\iay of MYy, 2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2406241 OB KeY NN QoD



Annexure A-to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Ramsarup Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. (a) Inrespect of Property, Plant and Equipment:

i. Except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(g)(vi) in the “Section — Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, we report that the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any intangible
assets. Hence, reporting under the clause 3(i)(a)(ii) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals after

©

(@

(e)

taking over the management and control of the company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.
According to information and explanation given to us, material discrepancies noticed on such verification and
the same has been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee, and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lease) are held in the name of the Company except the
land situated in Durgapur as disclosed in note 46(j) to the Financial Statements,

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under the clause
3(i)(e) is not applicable to the Company.

ii. (a) Inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies

iii.

iv.

were identified on such verification.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks on the

basis of security of current assets. However, since these limits have not yet been disbursed, the Company is
not required to file quarterly statements.

The Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited Hability partnerships or any other
parties during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
on a test check basis, it appears that during the year, the Company has not made any investments or provided
any guarantee or security on which the provisions of sections 185 and 186 are applicable. Hence reporting
under Clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
during the year in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73, 74,
75 & 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act 2013, for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, and any other statutory dues as
applicable to the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on 31 March
2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,1961 as income during the
year.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, including representations received from the
management of the Company, and based on the audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any governmental authority
or any other lender.

(¢} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

{e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence clause 3(ix)(e) does not apply to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence clause 3(ix)(f) does not apply to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized the
funds raised by way of private placement of debentures for the purposes for which they were raised during the
year.
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(®)

(c)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements, we report that there is no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company which has been
noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up
to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. Refer Note no. 44 in the financial statements.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not
required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, clause
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with them and hence, provisions of clause 3(xv) are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining
a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not registered as a Core Investment Company (CIC). Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) There is no Company registered as a Core Investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

Based on the examination of records, the Company has incurred cash loss of Rs.84.99 Lakhs during the
financial year ended 31 March 2024 and no cash loss in immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (xviif)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




XiX.

XX.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information given to us, section 135 of the Act is not applicable and hence matter specified
in clause 3(xx) of the Order does not apply to the Company.

For 8. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 309005E

CA. RITESH AGARWAL
Partner
Membership No. 062410

Dated: The AMay of MY, -
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: QYOL2YI0BKCYNNAOAD



Annexure B - to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Ramsarup Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Aqt”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ramsarup Industries Limited
(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the Company.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;




(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

For S, Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 309005E

CA. RITESH AGARWAL
Parmer

Membership No. 062410
Dated: The "H’an of Ma_y ,

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2 YOL2U IO B C.Y N NADRD



Ramsarup Industries Ltd.

CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

: As at As at
BArticulars Notes | 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Assets
| Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 8,223.33 8.400.10
(b) Right of use asset 5 497.38 1,159.88
(¢} Capital work-in-progress 5A 1,49,034.55 1,27,567.73
(d) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - -
(&) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 - 0.27
(i) Loans 7 - -
() Other non-current assets 8 2,421.76 35.47
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 - o
Total non-current assets 1,60,177.00 1,37,163.45
il Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,087.01 817.42
(b) Financial assets
(i}  Trade receivables 11 52.57 46.19
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 12 617.65 2,969.76
(i Bank balances other than (i} above
(v)  Other financial assets 13 - 17.08
€) Current tax assets (net) 14 198.97 180.10
(d) Other current assets 15 5,912.39 3,300.71
Total current assets 7,868.59 7,331.26
Total Assets 1,68,045.60 1,44,494.71
Equity and liabilities
n Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 600.00 500.00
| b} Other equitv 17 1,58,801.79 90,630.91
Total Equity 1,59,401.79 91,130.91
Liabilities
v Non-current llabilitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Lease liabilities 19.71 18.13
(b} Long term provisions 18 27.11 7.26
Total non-current liabilities 46.82 25.39
v Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 6,664.06 48,880.39
(i) Lease liabilities 3.16 1.58
(iiiy Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 20 83.40 49.76
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1,506.98 1,070.07
{iv)  Other financial liabilities 21 88.02 3,195.12
(b) Other current liabilities 22 223.90 130.82
(c) Short term provisions 23 27.47 10.67
(d) Current tax liabilities 24 - -
Total current liabllities 8,596.99 53,338.41
Total equity and liabilities 1,68,045.60 1,44,494.71
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-47

In terms of our report of even date attachg®
For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No - 309005E

CA Ritesh Agarwal
Partner
Membership No : 062410
Place: Kolkata
Date : The 9th day of May, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

iy

Sumit Chakraborty
Director
DIN 09568458

Dev Kumar Tiwari
Director
DIN 02432511

For RAMSARUP

INDUSTRIES LIWITED

vesatda Lotz
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Notes
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Revenue
| [Revenue from operations 25 - -
Il |Other income 26 48.79 203.87
Il |Total income (l+11) 48.79 203.87
Expenses
a)|Cost of materials consumed 27 - -
b}|Changes in inventories 28 - -
¢)|Employee benefit expenses 29 - -
d)|Finance cost 30 1.58 1.58
e)|Depreciation & amortisation expense 31 856.77 3,165.57
f)|Other expenses 32 48.69 40.67
IV |Total expenses 907.04 3,207.83
V_|Profit before exceptional items and tax(lll-1V) (858.24) (3,003.95)
VI |Exceptional items 33 - 4,595.73
VIl |Profit before tax(V-Vi) (858.24) 1,591.78
VIIl |Tax expense 34
a)| Current tax - -
b)| Deferred tax - S
¢)| Income tax for earlier years 85.09 -
IX |Profit for the year(VII-VIII) (943.34) 1,591.78
X |Other Comprehensive income
a)| Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit - -
plans
Tax impact on above - -
b)| items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of - -
tax
Xl_|Total comprehensive income for the year (1X+X) (943.34) 1,591.78
Xl |Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 35 (18.87) 31.84
Diluted (Rs.) (18.87) 31.84
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-47
In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. Jaykishan v
Chartered Accountants .
Firm Registration No - 309005E Sumit Chakraborty ~ Dev Kumar Tiwari
. Director Director
NioSwedes DIN 09568458 DIN 02432511
CA Ritesh Agarwal
Partner )
Membership No : 062410 !
Place: Kolkata : \,4}\'2;(
Date : The 9th day of May, 2024 Avirala W
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(ANl Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Equity share capital
Partlculars Huimbe ot Amount
shares
As at 01 April 2022 3,50,78,480 3,508
Less : Cancelled during the year {3,50,78,480)|  (3,508)
Add: Issued during the year 50,00,000 500
As at 31 March 2023 50,00,000 500
Changes in equity share capital during the year S S
As at 31 March 2024 50,00,000 500
Other equity
Reserve and Surplus Equity
Component of
financial
Particulars . Amalgamatio : instrument Total
Capital Reserve General Secur!tles n Retal_ned
Reserve | Premium Earnings
Reserve
Opening balance as at 1st April, 2022 38.87 . 39,000.32 2,636.11 (5,31,662.91) - {4,89,987.62)
Profit for the period - . - - 1,581.78 - 1,591.78
Adjustment pursuant to Resolution Plan * 33,710.70 - - - 5,45,316.05 - 5,79,026.75
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 33,710.70 - - - 5,45,316.05 - 5,79,026.75
Closing balance as at 31st March,2023 33,749.56 - 39,000.32 2,636.11 15,244.92 - 90,630.91
Profit /{loss) for the period - - - (943.34) - (943.34)
Adjustment pursuant to Resolution Plan 1,064.22 1,064,22
Issue of debentures - - - - 68,150.00 68,150.00
Closing balance as at 31st March,2024 34,813.78 - 39,000.32 2,636.11 14,301.59 68,150.00 1,58,901.79
Notes forming part of the financlal statements 1-47
* Refer Note No. 36
In terms of our report of even date attached
For S. Jaykishan Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ~
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN : U65993WB1979PLC032113
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
i For the year ended
Particulars
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

A) Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit / (loss) before tax (858.24) 1,591.78

Adjustments for :

(a) Depreciation 856.77 3,165.57

(b) Interest income (48.79) 5

{(c} Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - {203.30)

(d) Finance cost 1.58 1.58

(e) Exceptional items - (4,595.73)

() Impairment of financial instruments 0.27 -
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (48.41) (40.10)

Adjustments for:

(@) (Increase) / Decrease in inventories (269.59) (817.42)

(b) (Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (6.38) (46.19)

(¢} (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (2,611.68) (1,671.34)

(d) (Increase)/ Decrease in other non-current assets (50.96) (35.47)

(e) Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 470,55 (1,396.01)

(f) Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (2,042.89) 3,112.22

(g) Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 93.08 (19.90)
~ (h) Increase / (Decrease) in provision 36.65 (682.07)
Cash flow from opearting activities before taxes (4,429.63) (1,596.29)
Direct taxes paid (net) (103.97) (245.55)
Net cash flow from gperating activities (A) (4,533.60) (1,841.84)
B) Cash flow from investing activities :

(a) Interest received 48.79 -

(b) Capital Expenditure on PPE including (Increase) /Decrease

in capital work in progress {net of advances ) (23,799.41) (10,523.03)

{c} Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment -

(d) Sale /adjustment of Assets - 762.38
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (B) (23,750.62) {9,760.64)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

(a) Allotment of Shares - 500.00

(b) Proceeds from issue of convertible debentures 68,150.00

{c) Finance cost (1.58) (1.58)

(d) Borrowings - 42,738.65

(e) Proceeds from / (repayment of) borrowings (42,216.33) (35,100.00)
Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities (C) 25,932.09 8,137.07
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (2,352.11) (3,465.41)
Cash and Cash equivalents at closing of the year 617.65 2,969.76
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,969.76 6,435.18

(2,352.11) (3,465.41)

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED is the subsidiary company of S S NATURAL RESOURCES PVT. LIMITED. The Company is a
Public Limited Company incorporated in India having its registered office at, 5, C.R Avenue, Kolkata-700072, West Bengal,
India. It was incorporated as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IND AS AND RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

2.1

2.2

3.

3.1

3.2

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

All Ind AS issued and notified till the financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors have been
considered in preparing these standalone financial statements.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,2024, MCA
has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
excepting certain financial instruments which are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value/ amortized costs at
the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Basis of measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost canvention on the accrual basis, except for the following
items:

(i) Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value
(i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value;
(ili) Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In determining the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
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RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2024

Use of Estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The preparation of Financial
Statements require judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities including contingent liabilities on the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in
the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and
the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a written down method over estimated useful lives of the
assets. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived based on management estimates of the future useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets and the estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions
and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation charges.

Allowance for expected credit loss

The allowance for expected credit loss reflects management’s estimate of losses inherent in its credit portfolio. This
allowance is based on Company’s estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derives from past experience with similar
receivables, current and historical past due amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio
credit quality and current and projected economic and market conditions. Should the present economic and financial
situation persist or even worsen, there could be a further deterioration in the financial situation of the Company’s trade
receivables compared to that already taken into consideration in calculating the allowances is recognised in the Financial
Statements.

Income taxes

Current tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. To determine
the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the temporary differences
arerelated to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the losses to offset against the future
taxable profits. Recognition therefore involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the Company.
The amount of deferred tax assets, considered realisable, however, could reduce in the near term if estimates of future
taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.
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4.2

RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of
recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change.

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and revised
to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Employee Benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of
a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease,
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if thereis a
change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Financial Statements are as given below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Co
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

e revenue

|H44/




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the company’s activities as described below.
The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specific of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to customers
and the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

(b) Recognition of interest income and dividend income

(i)Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate. Interest income is included in the other income in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

All other income is accounted for on accrual basis when right to receive is established unless otherwise specified.

4.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

4.3.1. Recognition and Measurement:

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for administrative

purposes, are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(if any).

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing
the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation of
directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to working condition
for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-constructed assets.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4.3.2. Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the previously
recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.




4.4

4.5

RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

4.3.3. Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on written down value method at the rates determined based on the useful
lives of respective assets as prescribed in the Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

4.3.4. Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

4.3.5. Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on
amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial production,
deducting the net proceeds from selling the items of scrap and /or other wastes generated during the course of
construction/erection of the Capital Assets.

inventories

Inventories are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net Realizable Value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale. However, raw materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL) or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC!) depends on the objective, business model and
contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial instruments is determined on initial recognition.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash, and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase,

are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.
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RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial Instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if
the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
company measures the loss allowance at an amount equali to lifetime expected credit losses.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognises a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Financial Asset expire or
it transfers the Financial Asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial Liability (or a part
of a financial liability) is derecognized from the company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services
are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of

employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

Defined Benefit Plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognized as an expense at the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognized in the balance sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit
obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

4.6.3. Defined Contribution Plans

4.7

4.8

4.9

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as
a liability. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payment or refund.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and
the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the refated costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss over the periods and in the proportions in which depreciation expense on those assets is
recognized and presented within other operating revenue.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds.
Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the
cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of time.

Operating Segment

Based on the synergies, risks and returns associated with business operations and in terms of Ind AS 108, the Company is
predominantly engaged in a single reportable segment of Iron and Steel during the year. The risks and returns of existing
captive power plants are directly associated with the manufacturing operations of [ron and Steel hence treated as a single
reportable segment as per Ind AS 108. There is no separate geographical segment.

4.10 Earnings per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33. Basic earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year,
adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the shareholders by the weight average number of
the equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive.




RAMSARUP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

4.11 Fair Values Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided by the
management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
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Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5A Capital work-in-progress

a)

b)

Particulars As at 01 April, | Additions during| As at 31 March, Additions As at 31 March,

2022 the year 2023 during the year* 2024
Buildings 16,401.99 1,457.49 17.859.48 3,005.35 20,864.83
Plant and Equipment 86,696.25 7,703.87 94,400.12 15,885.45 1,10,285.57
Others 14,058.85 1,249.28 15,308.13 2,576.02 17,884.15
Total 1,17,157.09 10,410.64 1,27,567.73 21,466.82 1,49,034.55

*Additions during the year includes pre-operative expenses incurred under the following heads:

As at 31 March,

As at 31 March,

Particulars 4
Salaries and allowance 931.23 416.84
Contribution to provident and other funds 17.52 1.92
Legal and Professional fees 420.63 38.02
Interest on Borrowings 3,833.00 2,288.65
Other expenses 197.77 89.90
CWIP Ageing Schedule
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work in Progress as on M han 3
March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years O;Z;r:n Total
Projects in Progress 21,466.82 10,410.64 - 1,17,157.09 1,49,034.55
Total 21,466.82 10,410.64 - 1,17,157.09 1,49,034.55
Capital Work in Progress as on Ao Ih CWIFoTa pariod of More than 3
March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years O;Zar:n Total
Projects in progress 10,410.64 - - 1,17,157.09 1,27,567.73 |
Total 10,410.64 - - 1,17,157.09 1 ,27,567£I

As per the Resolution Plan approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, the Company is in the process of reviving the projects under progress. The
Commissioning of the said projects are in advanced stage of implementation.

CWIP whose completion is overdue

Capital Work in Progress to be completed In

Capital Work in Progress as on

March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;z;l::n 3 Total
Direct Reduced Iron (DRI) 19,443.38 - - - 19,443.38
Captive Power Plant (CPP) 17,633.65 - - 17,633.65
Mini blast Furnace (MBF) 32,499.39 - - 32,499.39
Sinter Plant 32,368.97 - - 32,368.97
Steel Melt Shop (SMS) 24,273.06 - - 24,273.06
Wire Division - 21,787.64 - 21,787.64
T™T - 327.08 - 327.08
Total 1,26,218.45 22,114.72 - - 1,48,333.17

Capital Work in Progress as on Capital Work in Progress to be completed In

March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years MO::;::" 3 Total
Direct Reduced Iron (DRI} - 14,963.50 - - 14,963.50
Captive Power Plant (CPP) - 12,516.94 - 12,516.94
Mini blast Furnace (MBF) - 26,587.85 - 26,587.85
Sinter Plant - 27,359.91 - 27,359.91
Steel Melt Shop (SMS) - 24,192.86 - 24,192.86
Wire Division - 21,653.09 - - 21,653.09
T™MT - 293.58 - - 293.58
Total - 1,27,567.73 - - 1,27,567.73




Ramsarup Industries Lid.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 |Investments
. As at As at
gemticuiars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Investments in equity shares measured at fair value through OCI
Unquoted
Moira Madhujore Coal Ltd. (Equity shares 27,239 of face value of Rs 10 each) 0.27 0.27
Less: Write-off of investments (0.27) -
Total - 0.27
7 |[Long term Loans
. As at As at
sl e 31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
Unsecured , Considered doubtful
Deposits with Govt. Departments & others * (0.00) 1,149.15
Less: Credit impairment allowance - 11,148.15)
Total (0.00) -
*Below rounding off norms
8 |Other non current assets
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Capital advances 2,318.25 -
Other receivables 20.82 “
Less: Credit impairment allowance (3.73) -
Security deposits 86.43 35.47
Total 2,421.76 35.47
9 |Deferred tax asset*
As at As at
gt clilars 31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
MAT Credit Entitlement - =
Total - =
*Deferred tax asset as on 31 March 2024 has not been considered as a matter of prudence
10 |Inventories ( valued at lower of cost and NRV)
Particulars LI e
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Raw materials - -
Finished goods - -
Stores & spares parts 1,087.01 817.42
Total 1,087.01 817.42
11 [Trade Receivables
Particulars iy Ll
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(a) Considered good - Unsecured 52.57 46.19

{b) Considered good - Secured
(C) Credit Impaired
Less : Credit impairment allowance

Total




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

12

Trade receivables ageing schedule (Ageing is prepared on the basis of date of transaction)

March 31,2024

Less than
6 months

6 months -

1 year 1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

{1} Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables —
Significant increase in credit risk

{ili) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
Significant increase in credit risk

(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

22,82 -

29.75

52.57

Total

22.82

- 29.75

52.57

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Ageing is prepared on the basis of date

of transaction)

March 31,2023

Less than
6 months

6 months -

1 §oar 1-2 years

2.3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
Significant increase in credit risk

(iti) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
Significant increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Less - Credit Impaired Allowance

46.19 B S

46.19

Total

46.19

46.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Cash in Hand
Balances with bank
In Current Accounts
In Fixed Deposit Account

Less : Amount earmarked for repayment as per resclution plan *

0.77

47517
909.26
(767.55)

0.53

110.36
28,741.09
(25,882.22)

Total

617.65

2,969.76

*The amount of Fixed Deposit above includes fixed deposits made by the Ex-RP with the bank representing the remaining amount payable to the
financial creditors alongwith the interest earned and accrued thereon as per the NGLT approved Resolution Plan and earmarked to be

adjusted/payable to the respective financial creditors.

14

15

Other current financlals assets

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Other Receivables - 20.82
Less: Credit impairment allowance - (3.73)
Total - 17.08
Current Tax Assets

i As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Advance tax (Net of provisions Rs. NIL Previous Year Rs. NIL) 198.97 180.10
Total 198.97 180.10
Other current Assets

: As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balances with Govt. Authorities 5,910.23 2,909.84
Prepaid expenses 1.85 7.28
Advance against Salary 0.30 1.82

Interest Accrued on FD




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.

CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16 |Equity Share Capital
. As at As at
il 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Authorised share capital
71,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (71,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ) 7,100.00 7,100.00
32,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs 10 each (32,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each) 3,200.00 3,200.00
Total 10,300.00 10,300.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 500.00 500.00
Total 500.00 500.00
A |Rights, preference & restriction attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Share having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting except in the case of interim dividend . In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts , in proportion to their
shareholding.
(a) |Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
. As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
RScliars Number Amount Number Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 50,00,000 500.00 3,50,78,480 3,507.85
Add : Issued during the year - - 50,00,000 500.00
iLess : Cancelled during the year - - 3,50,78,480 3,5607.85
Balance at the end of the year 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
(b) |Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aquity shares in the Company
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Number of % %
shates | ofholding | Number of shares of holding
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. 50,00,000 100% 50,00,000 100%
50,00,000 100% 50,00,000 100%
c) |Shareholding pattern of promoters as on 31 March 2024
Number of % % change
Name of the promoters shares of holding | during the
year
Equity shares
SS Natural Resources Pvt. Lid 50,00,000 100% 0.00%
Shareholding pattern of promoters as on 31 March 2023
Number of % % change
Name of the promoters shares | of holding | during the
year
Equity shares
Ashish Jhunjhunwala - 0.00% (4.31%)
Shashi Lohia - 0.00% {0.01%)
Ashish Jhunjhunwala - 0.00% (0.01%)
Vikash Ladia - 0.00% (0.01%)
K Gopinath - 0.00% (0.01%)
Satyajit Sharma - 0.00% (0.01%)
SS Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd 50,00,000 100% 100.00%
Imtihan Commercial Private Limited - 0.00% {15.52%)
Madhumalati Merchandise Private - 0.00% (8.71%)
Limited
Naresh Engineers Limited 0.00% {4.85%)
N R Mercantiles Pvt Ltd 0.00% (1.71%)
Ramsarup Investmenis Limited = 0.00% (0.79%})
Rav Dravya Private Limited = 0.00% (0.56%)
Ramsarup Vyapaar Limited - 0.00% (0.25%)
Denton Investments Lid 0.00% (0.84%)
d) [The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash in the preceding five years. Further, the Company has neither bought

back any shares nor issued any bonus shares during the immediately preceding five years.




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 |Other equity

) As at As at
papculars 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Capital Reserve 34,813.78 33.749.57
Securities Premium 39,000.32 39,000.32
Amalgamation Reserve 2,636.11 2,636.11
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 14,301.58 15,244.92
Equity component of financial instrument 68,150.00 -
Total of other equity 1,58,901.79 90,630.91
Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) |Capital reserve
Capital reserve is utilised in accordance with provision of the Act.

j As at As at
Ranicolars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 33,749.57 38.87
Additions during the year* 1,064.22 33,710.70
Balance at the end of the year 34,813.78 33,749.57

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v

M

payable.

*The remaining balance in the CIRP cost liability of Rs. 1064.22 Lakhs transferred to capital reserve as no further payment on this account is

Securities premium

Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on the issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of

. As at As at Jist
Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 39,000.32 39,000.32
Additions during the year - =
Balance at the end of the year 39,000.32 39,000.32

Amalgamation Reserve

is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Amalgamation reserve is used to record the surplus created on merger of Ramsarup Loh Udyog with Ramsarup Industries Limited. The reserve

Parti As at As at 31st
aficuiars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,636.11 2,636.11
Additions during the year - =
Balance at the end of the year 2,636.11 2,636.11
Surplus / (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Retained earnings pertain to the accumulated earnings / {losses) made by the Company over the years.

" As at As at 31st
jaitcliiars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,244.92 (5,31,662.91)
Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss (943.34) 1,591.78

Adjusiment pursuant to Resolution Plan - 5,45,316.05
Balance at the end of the year 14,301.58 15,244.92
Equity component of financial instrument - 0% Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs.10 each.

. As at As at 31st

Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
0% Optionally Convertible Debentures

Equity Component of Financial instruments 68,150.00 -
Reconcifiation of number of 0% Optionally Convertible Debentures outstanding at the beginning and end of the period:

. As at As at 31st
Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add : Issued during the year 68,150.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 68,150.00 -

The company has issued 68,15,00,000 nos of unsecured,0% Optionally Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each during this




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024
{All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

(iii)

18

19

20

201

Particulars of Debenture holders holding mare than 5% of Optionally Convertible Debentures

As at As at
Name of Debenture holder 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Number of % Number of %
debentures | of holding debentures of holding
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 39,00,00,000 57.23% - -
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. 29,15,00,000 42.77% - -

Terms / rights attached to 0% Optionally Convertible Debentures

The optienlly convertible debentures shall be convertible at the option of the Issuer company at any time post allotment after the expiry of 2
years but before completion of period of 10 years from the date of allotment.The debentures are convertible in the ratio of 59 equity shares of
the company for every 10000 debentures held.The Debentures are unsecured and unlisted . The Equity Shares as allotted upon conversion of
debentures shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

Long term provisions

; As at As at 31st
Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity { Refer Note 39) 23.19 7.26
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 39) 3.92 -
Total 27.11 7.26
Current Borrowings

. As at As at 31st
Famicuiars 31st March 2024 March 2023
Unsecured
- Related parties* 6,664.06 48,880.39
Total 6,664.06 48,880.39

Unsecured Loans :

*Loans from Related Parties / Group Companies carries interest rate of 6.5% per annum till 31.12.2023, thereafter the rate of interest is 8.5%
per annum.

Trade Payables

. As at As at 3ist
franticulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 83.40 49.76
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,506.98 1,070.07
Total 1,590.38 1,119.83

Disclosure Required Under Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (The Act ) are as follows:

(as per the information available with the company)

. As at As at 31st
Particulars 31st March 2024 March 2023
1. Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year. 83.40 49.76

2. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

3. The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the Micro , Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year.

4. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. - °

5. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

6. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise , for the

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.




Ramsarup Industries Lid.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21

22

23

24

Trade payables ageing is as follows: Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
31-Mar-24 Les;et:ran o1 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i} Undisputed- MSME 83.40 - - - 83.40
(i) Undisputed- Others 1,506.98 - - - 1,506.98
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - B
(iv) Disputed dues- others - - - - -
Total 1,590.38 - E E 1,590.38
Trade payables ageing is as follows: Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
31-Mar-23 Les;et:ran 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i} Undisputed- MSME 49.76 - - - 49.76
(i) Undisputed- Others 1,070.07 - - - 1,070.07
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- others - - - - -
Total 1,119.83 - - - 1,119.83
Other financial liabilities
i As at As at
Raiticubrs 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Interest Liability (Net of earmarked FD with bank - Refer Note No. 12) 0.00 1,376.10
Others liabilities - CIRP Related - 1,819.02
Payable to employees 88.01 &
Total 88.02 3,195.12
Other current liabilities
: As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Advance from Customer 28.91 -
Statutory dues payable 36.96 =
Other Payables - 97.91
Retention money 158.03 32.91
Total 223.90 130.82
Short term provisions
. As at As at
Ranticulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39) 0.34 0.32
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 39) 0.23 -
Provision for bonus 26.90 10.35
Total 2747 10.67
Current tax liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Income tax liability

Total




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25

26

27

28

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Sale of products
Sale of power

Total

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Interest on fixed deposit
Profit on sale of propenrty, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of stock of spares*

48.79

0.00

203.30
0.57

Total

48.79

203.87

*Below rounding off norms

Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Opening stock- Raw materials

Add: Purchase

Less: Closing stock - Raw Materials
Material consumed

Less : Loss of inventory

Total

{b) Construction Related Expenses
Opening Stock

Add: Expenses on Construction / Contracts
Less: Closing stock

Material consumed

Total

Changes in inventories

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Opening stock
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Scrap & Bye-Product

Closing stock

Finished Goods

Work in Progress

Scrap & Bye-Product
Changes in Inventories
Less : Loss of inventory

Total




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

29 |Employee benefit expenses
) For the year ended | For the year ended
Famticuiars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Salary, Wages & Bonus - -
Contribution to Provident & other Funds 5 -
Workmen Staff Welfare - -
Gratuity & Leave Encashment - -
Total - -
30 |Finance cost
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Interest to Bank & Others - -
Interest cost on Lease Liability 1.58 1.58
Total 1.58 1.58
31 |Depreciation & amortisation expense
. For the year ended For the year ended
particulats 31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
Depreciation & amortisation expense 856.77 3,165.57
Total 856.77 3,165.57
32 |Other expenses
P For the year ended For the year ended
pricukre 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Advertisement Charges - 0.94
Auditors remuneration {Refer note 32.1) 3.00 2.50
Additional payment of gratuity w/off - 0.45
Delisting fees - 12.50
Rent 25.29 19.44
Sundry Balances written off 16.64 o
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.75 4.84
Total 48.69 40.67
32.1 |Auditor’s Remuneration:
For the year ended For the year ended
ranticaiars 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Statutory audit fees 3.00 2.50
Tax audit fees - 5
Total 3.00 2.50
33 |Exceptional items
. For the year ended | For the year ended
NSCUISTE 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Adjustment pursuant to Resolution Plan - -
Operational Creditors Balances transferred to P & L A/c as exceptional items - 4,323.99
Statutory dues Balances transferred to P & L A/c as exceptional items - 271.74
Total - 4,595.73




Ramsarup Industries Ltd.
CIN: U65993WB1979PLC032113
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts in Rs. in Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

34 |[Tax Expenses

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Tax
in respect of the current vear - S
In respect of prior year (Earlier Years TDS Receivable wrilten off) 85.09 -
Subtotal 85.09 -
Deferred tax
MAT Entitlement Credit -
Subtotal - -
Total 85.09 -

35 |Earnings per share

i For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (A) (INR in lakhs) (943.34) 1,591.78
Weighted average number of shares issued for basic EPS (B) 50,00,000.00 50,00,000.00
Add: Diliutive impact of equity shares ( C) 14,00,468.00
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Diluted EPS (D= B+C) 64,00,468.00 50,00,000.00
Basic EPS in Rs. (A/B) {18.87) 31.84
Diluted EPS in Rs.(A/D) (18.87) 31.84
I view of losses during the year ended 31 March 2024, the polential shares are anti dilutive.

36|Effect of Resolution Plan approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

Company was admitted into Corporate Insolvency Resolution Plan (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 on 8th January, 2018,
Resolution Plan submitted by S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd and Shyam Sel and Power Ltd was approved by the Hon'ble NCLT on 4th|
September 2019. Appeals filed against the abovesaid order were dismissed by Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) on
4th March, 2021. Due te multifarious fitigations filed by several parties, the Resolution Plan and the implementalion thereto, achieved finality|
pursuant to an order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India on 12th May, 2022.
The Monitoring Agency handed over the management and control of the Company and Sucessful Resolution Applicants contributed the
requisite sum as per the approved resolution plan.

The Non-sustainable debt was converted into equity shares of the Corporate Debtor. The entire shareholding of the existing shareholders (other|
than the new equity shares but including converted equity shares) of the Corporate Debtor was subject to Capital Reduction process and was
reduced to nil / extinguished.

Accordingly, pursuant to the Resolution plan as approved by the Hon'ble NCLT order confirmed bythe Hon'ble NCLAT as above, in the previous|
year, the existing equity share capital and preterence share capital of Rs. 3,507.85 Lakhs and Rs. 2,695.99 Lakhs respectively has been
cancelled and transferred to capital reserve. The hokiing company had contributed Rs. 500.00 Lakhs towards allotment of 50,00,000 no. of
equity shares of the company in terms of the resolution plan. Entire preference share capital of the company comprising of 2,69,59,920 no. of

shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each alongwith any preference dividend, whether due or not. had also been cancelled. m
Zoy KISk 2
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37 |Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and
maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to
‘equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and cash eguivalents.
The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.
" As at As at
st 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Debt 6,664.06 48,880.39
Less: cash and cash equivalents (617.65) (2,969.76)
Adjusted net debt 6,046.41 45,910.63
Total Equity 1,59,401.79 91,130.91
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.04 0.50
38 |Financial Risk Management

The Company has in place comprehensive risk management palicy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various
risks pertaining to its business.They help in achieving the business goals and objectives consistent with the Company's strategies,
to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and practices.The Company's financial risk management is an integral
part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

» Credit risk

« Liquidity risk and

» Market risk

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial fiabilities
that are seltled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far|
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incutting unacceptable losses or nisking damage to the Company’s reputation.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 1 year or less 13 years More than
March 31, 2024 3 years
Borrowings 6,664.06 = -
Trade Payables 1,590.38 -
Other Financial Liabilities 88.02 -
Total 8,342.46 - -
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 1 le 14 More than
March 31, 2023 year oniess years 3 years
Borrowings 48,880.39 -
Trade Payables 1,119.83 -
Other Financial Liabilities 3,195.12 - -
Total 53,195.34 - -

(C) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect
the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to|

manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.The Company’s exposure
to, and management of, these risks is explained below.
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(1) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.Most of the transactions are denominated in the Company's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the Company is not
materially exposed to Foreign Currency Risk.

(li) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a
change in market interest rates.

39 '_Employee benefits
a) |Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous|
service for a period of of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ftermination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied with the number of years of
service. The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined obligations over the year are as follows -
Changes in defined benefit obligation
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particutars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 7.58 793.60
Currenl service cosl 15.95 7.58
Benelits Paid - 793.60
Present Value obligation as at the end of the year 23.53 7.58
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Present Value obligationas at the end of the year 23.53 7.68
Net Liability recognized in balance sheet 23.53 7.58
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Rarticulars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Current service cost * il -
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss E s
* Service cost of the year 2023-24 capitalised as the plant is under reconstruction
Actuarial assumptions
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Rarticulars 31stMarch 2024 | 31st March 2023
Discount rate 7.10% 7.30%
Future Salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
The assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are
determined close to each year end by reference to relevant economic markets and other related obligations. Other assumptions
are based on management's historica lexperience.
b) |Compensated absences
Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance,
Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise
experience adjustments and effect of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
The Company presents the provision of compensated absences under provisions in the Balance Sheet.
40 |Disclosure related to Leases
A.  |Additions/ (Deletions) to Right of Use
i As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
Leasehold Land (659.74) 132.10
B. |Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
Parti As at As at
articulars 31stMarch2024 | 31st March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,159.88 1,045.21
Additions/ (Deduction) (659.74) 132.10
Depreciation charge for the year 2.76 17.43
Balance at the end of the year 497.38
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Fair value measurements
Financial instruments by cateqgory:
31st March,2024 31st March,2023
Particulars Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI
cost cost
Financial Assets - Non-current
Investment in equity instruments = S e = S -
Financial Assets - Current
Investment in Mutual Funds - - - - S
Trade receivables 5257 - - 46.19 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 617.65 - - 2,969.76 S S
Other financial assets - - - 17.08 - -
Financial Liabilities - Non-current
Borrowings - - - - - -
Financial Liabilities - Current
Borrowings (including current maturities) 6,664.06 - - 48,880.39 - =
Trade payables 1,5690.38 - - 1,119.83 - o
Other financial liabilities 88.02 - - 3,195.12 - -

I. Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listed equity instruments that have
quoted market price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

II. Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, current loans, other current financial assets, trade payables, current
borrowings and other current financial liabilities are considered to be approximately equal to the fair value.
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Ratio Analysis

Current Ratio =Current assets divided by current liabilities

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current assets 7,868.59 7,331.26
Current liabilities 8,596.99 53,338.41
Ratio 0.92 0.14
% Change from previous year 566% 952%

Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio has increased from 0.14 in March, 2023 to 1.18 in March, 2024 mainly due to decrease in liabilities.

Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Shareholder's Equity where total debt refers to sum of current &

non current borrowings

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Total debt 6,686.93 48,900.10
Shareholder's Equity 1,59,401.79 91,130.91
Ratio 0.04 0.54
% Change from previous year -92.18% -155.77%

Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio has decreased from 0.54 to 0.04 over previous year due to decrease in debt and and increase in

0 TR R B D IR Y

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt service divided by interest and lease

payments + principal repayments

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Net profit /( loss } after tax (943.34) 1,591.78
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

-Depreciation and amortizations 856.77 3,165.57
-Fair value gain on investment in mutual funds 4.09
-Finance cost 1.58 1.58
Earnings available for debt service (84.99) 4,763.02
Interest cost on borrowings 2,405.35 2,290.22
Principal Due as on 31st March 2024 6,686.93 46,611.46
Total Interest and principal as on 31st March 2024 9,092.28 48,901.68
Total Interest and principal Payable 9,092.28 48,901.68
Ratio (0.01) 0.10
% Change from previous period / year -109.60% -17.74%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has decreased due to no earnings .

Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after taxes - preference dividend divided by average shareholder's

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Profit / Loss for the year (943.34) 1,591.78
Shareholder’s equity 1,59,401.79 91,130.N1
Return on equity (0.01) 0.02
% Change from previous period / year -133.88% ~46.04%
Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio has decreased due to no earnings .

Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of goods sold divided by average inventory

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Cost of goods sold
Average Inventory

Inventory Turnover Ratio

% Change from previous period / year
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Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Credit Sales divided by Average Trade Receivables

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Net Credit Sales
Average Trade Receivables

Ratio

% Change from previous period / year

Reason for change more than 25%: NA

Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit purchases divided by Average Trade Payables

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Net Credit Purchases - S
Average Trade Payables 1,590.38 1,119.83

Ratio

% Change from previous petiod / year

Reason for change more than 25%: NA

Current Liabilities

Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working Capital where Working Capital= Current Assets -

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Net sales - -
Working capital (728.39) (46,007.15)
Ratio - -
% Change from previous period / year - -
Reason for change more than 25%: NA

Net profit ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by Net Sales

Particulars 31st March 2024 3tst March 2023
Net profit / loss after taxes (943.34) 1,591.78
Net Sales* - -
Ratio -

% Change from previous period / year - -
Reason for change more than 25%: NA

Return on Capital employed =Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Earning before interest and taxes (856.67) 1,593.36
Capital Employed (A-B-C+D+E) 1,72,775.65 1,88,931.11
Total Assets (A) 1,68,045.60 1,44,494.71
Total Liabilities (B) 1,956.88 4,463.70
Intangible Assets ( C) - -
Total Debt (D} 6,686.93 48,900.10
Deferred Tax Liability ( E) - -
Ratio (0.00) 0.01
% Change from previous period / year -159% -63%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has changed due to no earnings.
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Contingent liabilities & commitments

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Contingent Liabilities Not Provided For :
{A) On account of Statutory Liabilities:
i) WB and Central Sales Tax Liabilities (Under Appeal)
{(Net of payments)
iiy Gentral Excise Liabilities (Under Appeal)
iii} Service Tax Liabilities under Appeal
iv) Income Tax Liabilities under Appeal
v) Wealth Tax Liability under Appeal
vi) Employee State Insurance {ESI}
vii} Provident Fund {P F}
( B ) Capital Commitments not provided : (Net of
Advances)

13,377.36

14,937.18

13,377.36

14,937.18

In view of the management supported by various judicial pronouncements the contention of the claimants in respect of
statutory liability prior to the date of approval of resolution plan by Hon'ble NCLT are not tenable and no outflow of fund with
respect to these are expected. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate
provisions, and disclosed contingent liabilities, where applicable, in its financial statements and does not expect any cash

outflow in this respect.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Names of Key Management personnel

Sumit Chakraborty - Director
Dev Kumar Tiwari - Director
Gopal Krishana Saran - Director
Vikash Rungta - Director

Malay Kumar De

Sumit Chakraborty - Director
Dev Kumar Tiwari - Director
Gopal Krishana Saran - Director
Vikash Rungta - Director

Holding Company

S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd.

S S Natural Resources Pvt, Ltd.

Parent of Holding Compny

Shyam Sel & Power Ltd.

Shyam Sel & Power Ltd.

Ultimate Holding Company

Shyam Metalics & Energy Ltd.

Shyam Metalics & Energy Lid.

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel
{KMP) are able to exercise control /significant influence
with whom there were transactions/ balance during the
year

Shyam Sel & Power Ltd.

Shyam Metalics & Energy Ltd.
Promotional Egity Services Pvt. L
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd.
Super Shakti Metaliks Ltd.
Shyam Metalics Flat Products P.

Shyam Sel & Power Ltd.

Shyam Metalics & Energy Lid.
Promotional Eqity Services Pvt. Ltd
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd.
Super Shakti Metaliks Ltd.

Ltd.

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Sanchita Chakraborty (Wife)
Sangeeta Tiwari (Wife)

Priti Sharan (Wife)

Reshma Rungta (Wife)

Sanchita Chakraborty (Wife)
Sangeeta Tiwari (Wife)
Priti Sharan (Wife)

(Wife)
¢
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B. |Related Party Disclosure (As per Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosures) -
For the year ended 31st March| For the year ended 31st March
Type of Transactions 2024 2023
1 [Sale of Goods
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 570.25 29.02
Super Shakti Metaliks Ltd. 404.20 6.44
Shyam Metalics & Energy Lid. 9.91
Shyam Metalics Flat Products Pvt. Ltd. 8.99
2 |Purchase of Goods
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 1,108.50 1,691.92
Shyam Metalics & Energy Ltd. 1,138.04 619.92
3 |Loan Received
Shyam Sel & Power Lid. 14,940.00 4,850.00
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. 6,585.00 41,141.74
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. - 600.00
4 |Loan Repaid
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 14,100.00 S
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. 48,226.75 S
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. 600.00 o
5 |Interest on Loan
Shyam Sel and Power Ltd. 397.35 42.32
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. 3,423.25 2,245.18
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. 12.40 1.15
6 |0% Optionally Convertible Debentures Issued -
Shyam Sel & Power Ltd. 39,000.00
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. 29,150.00 B
7 |Balances Outstanding on account of :
A |Loan (including interest payable})
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Lid. (576.72) (43,386.92)
Shyam Sel and Power Ltd. (6,087.35) (4,850.00)
Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd. - (601.15)
B |Trade Receivables / (Payable)
Shyam Sel and Power Ltd. (208.49) -
Shyam Metalics & Energy Ltd. (104.44) -
Shyam Metalics Flat Products Pvt. Ltd. 8.99 -
Super Shakti Metaliks Ltd. 13.46 -
C. |There is no transaction with Directors and Relatives of K.M.P. during the year.
D. [No Managerial remuneration has been paid to the Directors during the year.
45 |SEGMENT REPORTING
As per Ind As 108 "Operating segments", specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is
predominantly engaged in reportable segment of Iron and Steel and Power, where Power is less than 10%. Based on the
Management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision evaluated the company's performance and
allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic
segments. The Company therefore opeartes in a single reporting segment.
PTITAN
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46 |Other Disclosures

A. |Details of Benami Property held : The Compant does not hold any Benami Property and hence there are no proceedings
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions)Act,
1988 and the Rules made thereunder, hence no such disclosure is required to be given as such.

B. [Wilful Defaulter : The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter as at the date of the balance sheet or on the date of]

approval of the financial statements, hence no disclosure is required as such.
C. |Long Term and Derivative Contract : The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for|
which any material forseeable losses.

D. |Investor Education and Protection Fund : There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

E. [Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) : There are some charges appearing in the
site of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, which are related to Pre CRIP Period, these satisfactions were the responsibilities of the
old Management. However, we are in discussion with bankers (Charge Holders) to obtain their NOC for the purpose of filling
F. |Compliance with number of layers of Companies : The Company does not have any investment in any downstream
companies for which it has to comply with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restrictionon number of layers) Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such.

G. |Utilization of Borrowings : The Company does not have any outstanding balances towards the borrowings from banks and

financial institutions at the balance sheet date, hence no disclosure is required as such.

H. |Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency : The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or virtual
Currency during the financial year, hence no disclosure is required as such.

. |Disclosure of Transaction with Struck off Companies : The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck

off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the fainancial year.

J.  [Title Deed of Inmovable Property : The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company
except for land situated in Durgapur, the title deeds of which are not available with the company. Also, due to non availability
of detail / information, the detailed disclosures as required could not be made by the company in Financial Statements.

K. [Utilization of Borrowed Funds : The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Company shall :

iy |directly or indirectly lend or invest inother persons or entities identifeied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

iy |provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i) |directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

iiy  |provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
L. |Undisclosed Income : The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the current or previous year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

47 |Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to
those for the current year.

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. Jaykishan
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